
 
 

  Town of Paradise 
Town Council Meeting Agenda 

 

 January 10, 2017 
 

                                   Date/Time:    2nd Tuesday of each month at 6:00 p.m. 
                                   Location:       Town Hall Council Chamber, 5555 Skyway, Paradise, CA 
  
   

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Procedures 
 

I. The Mayor is the Presiding Chair and is responsible for maintaining an orderly 
meeting.  The Mayor calls the meeting to order and introduces each item on the 
agenda. 

 
II. The Town staff then provides a report to Council and answers questions from the 

Council.     
 
III. Citizens are encouraged to participate in the meeting process and are provided 

several opportunities to address Council.  Any speaker addressing the Council is 
limited to three minutes per speaker - fifteen minutes per agenda item 

 
A. If you wish to address the Council regarding a specific agenda item, 

please complete a “Request to Address Council” card and give it to the 
Town Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  This process is 
voluntary and allows for citizens to be called to the speaker podium in 
alphabetical order.  Comments and questions from the public must be 
directed to the Presiding Chair and Town Council Members (please do not 
address staff.)  Town staff is available to address citizen concerns Monday 
through Thursday at Town Hall between the hours of 8am and 5pm.   

 
B. If you wish to address Council regarding an item not on the agenda, you 

may do so under Item 4, “Public Communication.” Again, please fill out a 
card and give it to the Town Clerk before the meeting.  State Law prohibits 
Council action on items not listed on a public agenda.   

 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance, persons who need special 

accommodations to participate in the Town Council meeting may contact the Town Clerk at least three business 

days prior to the date of the meeting to provide time for any such accommodation.  
 
 

Town Manager, Lauren Gill 
Town Attorney, Dwight L. Moore 
Town Clerk, Dina Volenski 
Community Development Director, Craig Baker 
Finance Director/Town Treasurer, Gina Will 
Public Works Director/Town Engineer, Marc Mattox 
Division Chief, CAL FIRE/Paradise Fire, David Hawks 
Chief of Police, Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen 
 

Mayor, Scott Lotter 
Vice Mayor, Jody Jones 
Council Member, Greg Bolin 
Council Member, Melissa Schuster 
Council Member, Mike Zuccolillo 

1



1.        OPENING 

 
           a.       Call to Order 
           b.       Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America 
           c.      Invocation 
           d.       Roll Call 
 

1e. Police Department Employees of the Year 

Steve Bertagna – 2016 Police Officer of the Year 
Kassidy Honea – 2016 Public Safety Dispatcher of the Year 
Valerie Lynch – 2016 Civilian Employee of the Year 
Wayne Ward - 2016 Volunteer in Police Service of the Year 
Jim Dill – 2016 Paradise Animal Shelter Helper (PASH) of the Year 

 

2.        CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

           One roll call vote is taken for all items.  Consent items are considered to be 
           routine business that does not call for discussion. 
 

2a. p4 Approve Minutes of the December 13, 2016 regular Town Council 
Meeting.  

2b. p13 Approve December 2016 cash disbursements in the amount of 
$937,696.52 

2c. p21 Adopt Resolution No. 17-01, A Resolution of the Town Council of the 
Town of Paradise Authorizing Submittal of an application to the California 
State Department of Housing and Community Development for funding 
under the HOME Investment Partnerships Program; and if selected, the 
execution of a standard agreement, any amendments thereto, and of any 
related documents necessary to participate in the HOME Investment 
Partnerships Program 

2d. p25 Adopt Resolution No. 17-02, A Resolution of the Town Council of the 
Town of Paradise Declaring Certain Town Property to be Surplus and 
Authorizing Disposal Thereof.  

2e. p30 1.  Approve submission of a Substantial Amendment to the 2009/10 
and 2013/14 CDBG Annual Plans to HUD.  (The proposed amendment 
would re-allocate the $80,000 in funding budgeted for Commercial Façade 
from the 2009/10 Program Year and the $40,000 allocated to Business 
Assistance from the 2013/14 Program Year to Housing Assistance.) 

2f. p34 Accept two cash donations to the Town of Paradise Animal Shelter in 
the amount of $4,200.00 and apply it to Animal Control Donations 
7811.30.4540.3650.100. 

2g. p35 1.  Accept the cash donation from Cindy Haskett, Blue Team Realty, 
Inc. to the Town of Paradise Fire Department in the amount of $5,000.00 
and apply it to Fire Department Donations 7810.35.000.3650.100; and, 2.  
Approve $5,000.00 budget appropriation from Fire Department Donations 
Fund Account 7810.35.4630.5304 for the purchase of radio and intercom 
equipment. 

 
2



3 

 

3.        ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

4.        PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

           For matters that are not on the Council business agenda, speakers are allowed 
           three (3) minutes to address the Council.  The Town Council is prohibited from 
           taking action on matters that are not listed on the public agenda.  The Council 
           may briefly respond for clarification and may refer the matter to the Town staff.  
 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

           For items that require a published legal notice and/or a mailed notice. 
 

           Public Hearing Procedure: 
           A.  Staff Report 
           B.  Mayor opens the hearing for public comment in the following order: 
                      i.    Project proponents (in favor of proposal) 
                      ii.   Project opponents (against proposal) 
                      iii.  Rebuttals – if requested 
           C.  Mayor closes the hearing  
           D.  Council discussion and vote 
 

5a. p37 1. Conduct a public hearing to solicit comments and/or suggestions 
regarding the 2017-2018 Annual Plan funding priorities; and, 2.  Approve 
the formation of a public services sub-committee to consider input and 
requests for public services funding; and, 3. Appoint two Council members 
to the public services sub-committee. 

 

6.        COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
   

           Action items are presented by staff and the vote of each Council Member must 
           be announced.   A roll call vote is taken for each item on the action calendar.  
           Citizens are allowed three (3) minutes to comment on agenda items. 
 

6a. p41 Paradise Police Department Building Electrical Emergency Update - 
Informational update only, no action requested. 

7.        COUNCIL INITIATED ITEMS AND REPORTS 
 

               7a.  Council initiated agenda items 
               7b.  Council reports on committee representation 
               7c.  Future Agenda Items 
 

8.        STAFF COMMUNICATION 
 

              8a. Town Manager Report 

 Community Development Director 
 

 

9.        CLOSED SESSION – None 
 

10.      ADJOURNMENT 

                                                     
3



MINUTES 

PARADISE TOWN COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 PM – December 13, 2016 

1.        OPENING 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Paradise Town Council was called to order by Mayor Jones 
at 6:00 p.m. in the Town Council Chamber at 5555 Skyway, Paradise, California, who 
led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. An invocation 
was offered by Council Member Culleton. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Greg Bolin, Steve “Woody” Culleton, Scott Lotter, 
John J. Rawlings and Jody Jones, Mayor. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Town Manager Lauren Gill, Town Attorney Dwight Moore, Town 
Clerk Dina Volenski, Administrative Services Director/Town Treasurer Gina Will, Public 
Works Director/Town Engineer Marc Mattox, Community Development 
Services/Planning Director Craig Baker, Police Chief Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen, Division 
Chief, CAL FIRE/Paradise, David Hawks, IT Manager Josh Marquis, Lt. Stephen Rowe, 
Building Official/Fire Marshal Tony Lindsey, .  

 
1e. MOTION by Rawlings, seconded by Culleton, approved Minutes of the 

November 7, 2016 regular adjourned Town Council Meeting.  Roll call 
vote was unanimous. 

1f. Presentation from Senator Nielsen‟s office, represented by Jerry Crow, 
acknowledging Lieutenant Stephen Rowe‟s retirement. 

1g. The 2016 year in review was presented by Mayor Jody Jones.  Mayor 
Jones highlighted the $500,000 grant received to conduct a Sewer 
Feasibility Study and Alternative Analysis in Paradise; passed an 
amendment prohibiting outdoor growing of marijuana;  assisted first time 
home buyers purchase homes and home owners rehabilitate their 
properties using grant funds; provided grant funding to six non-profit 
groups who proved assistance to over 500 local residents; leveraged 
Measure C funds to purchase three new Police vehicles, a fire engine, 
initiated a road improvement project and provided funding to Animal 
Control; started a temporary amnesty program for residents with large 
outstanding citation balances; negotiated a 3-year contract with employee 
groups; abated public health and safety hazards in Town through 
receiverships; completed safety enhancements on Clark Road adding a 
two-way center turn lane, upgraded ADA ramps, upgraded signals and 
road resurfacing; completed improvements on Pearson Road which 
included widening the shoulders, installing Class II bike lanes drainage 
improvements and a road overlay; supported a successful Economic 

4



Development event in September-Wine in the Pines; continued progress 
of online services such as Dog licenses which are now available online 
and Clearance to Record which will soon be available; and, supported a 
successful Arlan Hudson Make a Difference Day in October which 
completed over 20 projects in Paradise and will be even better next year.  

1h. Certificates of Recognition were presented to Council Members Steve 
"Woody" Culleton and John J. Rawlings by Mayor Jones and Senator 
Nielsen „s representative, Jerry Crow.  

1. Ward Habriel thanked Council Member Rawlings for his interest in 
animals and Council Member Culleton for his compassion and passion. 

1i. MOTION by Lotter, seconded by Culleton, Adopted Resolution No. 16-
77, A Resolution Reciting the Facts of the General Municipal Election 
Consolidated with the Statewide General Election held on November 8, 
2016 Declaring the Result and Such Other Matters as Provided by Law.  
Roll call vote was unanimous.  

1j. Town Clerk Volenski presented Certificates of Election and administered 
the Oaths of Office to newly elected Council Members Greg Bolin, Melissa 
Schuster and Mike Zuccolillo. 

1k. At 6:28 Mayor Jones adjourned the meeting for a 10-minute recess for 
outgoing and incoming Council Members. 

1l. At 6:39 p.m. Town Clerk Volenski reconvened the Council Meeting and 
called the roll for the reorganized Paradise Town Council: Greg Bolin, 
Jody Jones, Scott Lotter, Melissa Schuster and Mike Zuccolillo. 

1m. Town Clerk Volenski, as temporary chair, opened the nominations for 
selection of Mayor for a one-year term commencing December 13, 2016 
and ending December 12, 2017.  

 Jody Jones nominated Scott Lotter to serve as Mayor for a one-year term 
commencing December 13, 2016 to December 12, 2017. 

 Motion by Bolin, seconded by Jones, closed the nominations for 
position of Mayor.  Roll call vote was unanimous.  

 By unanimous roll call vote, the Council appointed Scott Lotter to serve as 
Mayor for a one-year term commencing December 13, 2016 to December 
12, 2017. Ayes of Bolin, Jones, Lotter, Schuster and Zuccolillo.   

1. Ward Habriel, welcomed the new Council Members, encouraged them 
to be patient and listen to the citizens. 

1n. Town Clerk Volenski turned the meeting over to Mayor Lotter who opened 
nominations for the position of Vice-Mayor for a one-year term. 

5



Mayor Lotter nominated Jody Jones to serve as Vice-Mayor for a one year 
term commencing December 13, 2016 and ending the first regular 
meeting in December 2017. 

Motion by Zuccolillo, seconded by Schuster, closed the nominations 
for position of Vice Mayor.  Roll call vote was unanimous.  

By unanimous roll call vote, the Council appointed Jody Jones to serve as 
Vice Mayor for a one-year term commencing December 13, 2016 to 
December 12, 2017. Ayes of Bolin, Jones, Schuster, Zuccolillo and Mayor 
Lotter.  

1o. Presentation of Online Dog Licensing - Josh Marquis, IT Manager 

1. Sharon Simonton, member of PASH, requested to use the link to dog 
licenses on the PASH Website. 

1p. Presentation - Update on Sewer Feasibility Study by Marc Mattox, Town 
Engineer. 

1. Cliff Jacobson, asked about pumping of customers tanks, when the 
final report would be published and if there would be enough time for 
the public to comment on the findings.  

Town Engineer Mattox informed that the tanks would be pumped into a 
collection system. Mayor Lotter informed that once the draft final report is 
released it will be available for public comment and final direction will 
come from the Council.  

2.        CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

          MOTION by Bolin, seconded by Zuccolillo, approved all consent calendar 
 items 2a-2h as presented.  Roll call vote was unanimous. 
 

2a. Approved November 2016 cash disbursements in the amount of 
$1,621,533.09. 

2b. Waived the second reading of the entire Town Ordinance No. 565 and 
approved reading by title only; and  adopted Town Ordinance No. 565, "An 
Ordinance Amending Paradise Municipal Code Sections 8.12.020, 
8.12.040, 8.12.050, 8.12.090, 8.12.120, 8.12.150 And 8.12.160 Relating to 
Felling, Removal, Destruction, Damaging and Replacement of Trees" 

2c. 1. Awarded Contract No. 16-18, Town Hall Carpet Replacement 2016, to 
Hignell “Experts in your Home” in the amount of their Bid of $11,323.42; 
and, 2. Authorized the Town Manager to execute an agreement with 
Hignell “Experts in your Home” relating to Contract No. 16-18 and  
approved contingency expenditures not exceeding 10%; and, 3. Approved 
$10,053.88 budget adjustment to account 1010.20.4201.5303 (General 
Fund – Central Services) in order to complete Town Hall improvement 
project. 

6



2d. Approved authorization to extend Public Safety Recruitment Incentives as 
approved on August 12, 2014 until December 31, 2017.  

2e. 1. Awarded Contract No. 15-02.NI, Maxwell Dr SR2S Project, to Center for 
Healthy Communities on behalf of the CSU, Chico Research Foundation 
in the amount of their proposal of $52,500. 

2f. 1. Approved the Program Supplement Agreement No. N013-Rev. 1 , to 
Administering Agency-State Agreement No. 03-5425R for Federal-Aid 
Projects to assure receipt of federal funds; and,  

2. Adopted Resolution No. 16-78, A Resolution of the Town Council of the 
Town of Paradise Authorizing the Town Manager or her Designee to sign 
the Program Supplement Agreement No. N013-Rev. 1 to Administering 
Agency-State Agreement for Federal Aid Project No. HSIPL-5425 (025) - 
$1,174,300 for the Cypress Curve Realignment Project; and,   

3. Awarded Contract No. 14-02, Cypress Curve Realignment Project, to 
Knife River Construction of Chico, CA in the amount of their bid of 
879,426.00; and, 

4. Authorized the Town Manager to execute an agreement with Knife 
River Construction relating to Contract No. 14-02 and to approve 
contingency expenditures not exceeding 10%.  

2g. 1. Awarded Contract 16-12, Town of Paradise HVAC Maintenance 
Services, to RB Spencer, Inc. of Yuba City, CA in the amount of their bid 
$4,330 per year and $126.75 per hour. 

2h. Paradise Police Department Building Electrical Emergency Update - 
Informational update only, no action requested. 

3.        ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR  - None 

4.        PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

1. Ciara Mack Barnes, founder of HeartShine Foundation, welcomed the new 
 Council Members, thanked Council for support, reported on Heartshine 
 Christmas Carol tour and accomplishments over the past year.  

            
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

           For items that require a published legal notice and/or a mailed notice. 
 

           Public Hearing Procedure: 
           A.  Staff Report 
           B.  Mayor opens the hearing for public comment in the following order: 
                      i.    Project proponents (in favor of proposal) 
                      ii.   Project opponents (against proposal) 
                      iii.  Rebuttals – if requested 
           C.  Mayor closes the hearing  
           D.  Council discussion and vote 
 

7



5a. Following a report from Town Manager Gill, the second of two public 
hearings was opened to solicit comments regarding a proposed 
Substantial Amendment to the 2009/10 and 2013/14 Community 
Development Block Grant Annual Plans.  

The public hearing was opened at 7:10 p.m. 

There was no public comment. 

The public hearing was closed at 7:10 p.m. 

No action was taken by Council at this time.  

6.        COUNCIL CONSIDERATION   
 

 Council Member Zuccolillo recused himself from the meeting at 7:11 p.m.  
 

6a. MOTION by Jones, seconded by Schuster, 1. Awarded Contract No. 
15-01, Pearson Rd SR2S Connectivity Project, to Franklin Construction of 
Chico, CA in the amount of their Base Bid of $985,226.00; and, 2. 
Authorized the Town Manager to execute an agreement with Franklin 
Construction relating to Contract No. 15-01 and to approve contingency 
expenditures not exceeding 7%.  Ayes of Bolin, Jones, Schuster and 
Mayor Lotter and Not Voting – Zuccolillo 

Council Member Zuccolillo returned to the dais at 7:22 p.m. 

6b. MOTION by Jones, seconded by Bolin approved recommendations for 
use of existing Tree Replacement Fund balance of $2,500 by the Public 
Works Department to take care of the Town‟s current needs and bring the 
item back if any money is deposited into the fund by a potential project. 
Roll call vote was unanimous.  

1. Ward Habriel suggested donations from National Arbor Day 
Foundation, Butte College Horticulture and Mendon‟s Nursery.  

6c. MOTION by Jones, seconded by Bolin, adopted the following actions:  

1.  Authorized the Town Manager to execute the documents necessary to 
order and purchase a Type 1 Pierce Enforcer Fire Engine before February 
1, 2017, and 

2. Declared the 2008 Sutphen fire engine as surplus and pursuant to 
Paradise Municipal Code Section 2.45.130A, authorized the Town 
Manager to enter an agreement with a broker to sell the engine with a 
commission not exceeding 5%, and 

3. Authorized staff to temporarily use $175,750 of general fund 
reserves to purchase the Type 1 Pierce Enforcer Fire Engine until the 
2008 Sutphen fire engine is sold wherein the reserves would be 
immediately replaced, and    

8



4. Approved Resolution No. 16-79, A Resolution authorizing the 
execution and delivery of a lease with option to purchase, and authorizing 
certain actions in connection therewith  with terms not exceeding 4 years 
and 2.25%, and   

5. Approved budget adjustment and appropriation of $40,401 for 
2016/17 to cover the first two quarters of lease purchase payments and 
review Measure C Revenue/Expenditure Plan that outlines a plan to 
finance the new engine with Measure C funds; and, 

6. That the big plans for Measure C be brought back at the mid year 
budget.  

1. Cliff Jacobson suggested getting a commitment from another agency 
for the fire truck before moving forward since the current fire truck is still 
functional. 

Roll call vote was unanimous. 

6d. Motion by Jones, seconded by Zuccolillo, appointed Council 
representatives and alternates to represent the Town of Paradise on 
various local and regional boards, committees and commissions.  (List of 
appointments attached to the minutes).  Unanimous voice vote.  

7.        COUNCIL INITIATED ITEMS AND REPORTS 

 
a. Council initiated agenda items – None 

 
b. Council reports on committee representation 

 
Vice Mayor Jones attended BCAG, BCAQMD and Swearing in of new Police 
Officers. 
 
Mayor Lotter attended the Swearing in of new Police Officers, the Truck Parade, 

 Shop with a Cop and the VIPS Dinner. 
 
Council Member Schuster attended Shop with a Cop, Swearing in of new Police

 Officers, the Swearing in of the new Chico City Council Members and the TBID 
 meeting.  

 
Council Member Zuccolillo attended the swearing in of new Police Officers.  

 

c. Future Agenda Items – None 

 
8.        STAFF COMMUNICATION 

 
Town Manager reported on the availability of the online dog license, the progress 
of the front door project which will be complete by the beginning of the new year 
allowing for dog licenses and bus passes to be available Monday through 

9



Thursday from 8-5, the Love Paradise Committee will be meeting tomorrow and 
the Town Manager would like to make it a established Town Council Committee 
and will bring it back to the Town Council as a consideration item at a later date.  

            
Town Manager Gill provided the Community Development report – Safeway‟s 
application is complete and now there will be RFP‟s for the Environmental 
Document.  
 

9.        CLOSED SESSION 

9a. At 8:34 p.m. Mayor Lotter announced that pursuant to Government Code 
section 54956.9(d)(1), Town Council will hold closed session with the 
Town Attorney Dwight L. Moore and Town Manager Lauren M. Gill relating 
to the following pending litigation: 

Town of Paradise vs. Wendy Jane Baker, Heather Jane Baker, Norma 
Louise de Aryan, David Venus Solomon, Dixianne Hawks, Cornelia 
Waasdorp, aka Cornelia Gold, and Anna Everdina Hawks - Butte County 
Superior Court Case No. 16CV02070.  

At 9:14 p.m. Mayor Lotter reconvened the Town Council meeting and reported that no 
action was taken.  

10.       ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Lotter adjourned the Council meeting at 9:15 p.m. 

Date approved: 

By: 
 _______________________________ 
 Scott Lotter, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 

__________________________________ 
Dina Volenski, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

10



 

2017 TOWN COUNCIL 

REPRESENTATION 

          

 

BUTTE COUNTY 

COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS 

     
          

 

BUTTE COUNTY  

 

Bolin Jones Lotter Schuster Zuccolillo 

1 Air Quality Management District 

 

R A 

  2 Association of Governments  

 

R A 

  3 City Selection Committee (Mayor) 

  

R 

  4 Disaster Council (Mayor) 

  

R 

  5 

 

 

Local Area Formation Commission 
(LAFCo) (Lotter through 5/2019 – 
Appointed by City Selection 
Committee) 
 
 

  

R 

 

   6 Mosquito and Vector Control Board 

   

R 

 7 Waste Mgt Local Task Force R 

   

A 

8 

 
Water Advisory Committee (2 or 4-
year term)  

    

R 

9 City/County Ad Hoc Committee 

  

R 

  
10 
 

Lake Oroville Supplemental Benefits 
Funds- Alternate: Citizen Sam 
Dresser 

     11 
 

T-BID 
    

R 

 

          

          

 

LOCAL COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS 

     

          

 

PARADISE 

  

Bolin Jones Lotter Schuster Zuccolillo 

1 Paradise Community Village 

  

R 

 

AA 

2 Paradise Irrigation District Liaison R 

   

R 

3 Paradise Rec. & Park District Liaison R 

   

R 

4 Paradise Solid Waste Committee R R 

   5 Onsite Ad Hoc Committee R 

   

R 

6 Finance Committee 
(Mayor & Vice Mayor) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R R 

  7 Oversight Board to Successor 
Agency (Mayor Appointment ) 
 
 

  

R 

   

 

11



  

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



 

 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 

January 10, 2017 
 Agenda No. 2(c) 

 
 
Originated By: Kate Anderson, Housing Program Supervisor 
 
Reviewed By: Lauren M. Gill, Town Manager 
 
Subject: Submittal of the 2016 HOME Application to the California 

State Department of Housing and Community Development 
 
 
 
Council Action Requested: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 17-__, “A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of 
Paradise authorizing the submittal of an application to the California State 
Department of Housing and Community Development for the funding under the 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program; and, if selected, the execution of a 
standard agreement, any amendments thereto, and any related documents 
necessary to participate in the HOME Investment Partnerships Program.” 
 
Background: 
 
A Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) was issued on December 6, 2016 by the 
California State Department of Housing and Community Development, for 
funding under the HOME Investment Partnership Program.   
 
The Town of Paradise was successfully awarded $1,000,000 in 2014.  Under the 
current NOFA, the maximum award is $1,000,000.   
 
Discussion and Analysis: 
 
The new grant application will allow the Town to fund its housing programs.  
Through this grant, the department will continue to provide Owner-Occupied 
Housing Rehabilitation Loans to lower-income homeowners and First-Time 
Homebuyer Loans to lower-income homebuyers.  Staff is requesting Council 
permission to submit an application for $1,000,000 in HOME funds to supplement 
these housing programs.  The deadline to submit an application is February 2, 
2017. 
 
If awarded, the Town will allocate $731,250 for homeowner-occupied 
rehabilitation and $243,750 for first-time homebuyers.  The State does allow for 

 

21



Council Agenda Summary 
January 10, 2017 
Page 2 
 

 

these funds to be interchanged in order to respond to housing needs. 
 
Alternatives: 
 
There are no viable alternatives for funding the Town’s housing programs at this 
time. 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The application submittal has no financial impact on the General Fund, and will 
add an additional $1,000,000 in grant funding for the Housing Rehabilitation and 
First-Time Homebuyer programs.  There is no match requirement associated 
with this grant; therefore, an award would also have no financial impact. 
 

22



TOWN OF PARADISE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-__ 
 
 

“A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise Authorizing Submittal 
of an application to the California State Department of Housing and Community 

Development for funding under the HOME Investment Partnerships Program; and 
if selected, the execution of a standard agreement, any amendments thereto, and 

of any related documents necessary to participate in the HOME Investment 
Partnerships Program” 

 
 

WHEREAS, The California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(the “Department”) is authorized to allocate HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
(“HOME”) funds made available from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (“HUD”).  HOME funds are to be used for the purposes set forth in Title II 
of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, in federal 
implementing regulations set forth in Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations, part 
92, and in Title 25 of the California Code of Regulations commencing with section 8200; 
and; 
 

WHEREAS, On December 6, 2016 the Department issued a 2016 Notice of 
Funding Availability announcing the availability of funds under the HOME program (the 
“NOFA”); and; 
 

WHEREAS, In response to the 2016 NOFA, The Town of Paradise (hereinafter 
referred to as “Town”), a State of California municipal corporation, wishes to apply to the 
Department for, and receive an allocation of, HOME funds. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF PARADISE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. In response to the 2016 NOFA, the Town shall submit an application to the 

Department to participate in the HOME program and for an allocation of funds not to 
exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for the following activities and/or programs:  

 
Owner-Occupied Residential Rehabilitation Program and First-Time Homebuyer 
Program  
 

 to be located in the incorporated Town of Paradise, California. 
 

2. If the application for funding is approved, then the Town hereby agrees to use the 
HOME funds for eligible activities in the manner presented in its application as 
approved by the Department in accordance with the statutes and regulations cited 
above.  The Town may also execute a standard agreement, any amendments 

23



thereto, and any and all other documents or instruments necessary or required by 
the Department or HUD for participation in the HOME program (collectively, the 
required documents). 

 
3. The Town authorizes the Mayor and the Town Manager, or his/her designee(s), to 

execute, in the name of the Town, the required documents.  Said designees are: 
Gina Wills, Finance Director, Colette Curtis, Administrative Analyst, and Craig Baker, 
Community Development Department Director. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 
THIS 10th DAY OF JANUARY 2017, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 
AYES:   _____  
  
NOES:  _____  
 
ABSENT:  _____ 
 
NOT VOTING: _____ 
 
 
  

________________________________ 
Scott Lotter, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST:       
 
 
________________________________ 
Dina Volenski, Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVE AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 
 

24



1 

 

 TOWN OF PARADISE 
 Council Agenda Summary 

January 10, 2017 
 

 
 AGENDA NO. 2(d)  
 
ORIGINATED BY:  Gina Will, Finance Director/Town Treasurer  
 
REVIEWED BY:      Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Declaration of Certain Town Furniture/Equipment from various 

departments to be Surplus and Obsolete. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
 

1.) Declare the described office items as surplus property; and 
 

2.) Adopt Resolution No. 17-__, declaring certain Town Furniture/Equipment to be 
surplus and obsolete and authorizing disposal through sale, donation or 
destruction by the Town Manager or her designee.  

 

BACKGROUND:  Due to the recent decision to open the front door at Town Hall, 
move the Clerk’s office to the front of the building and carpet various offices, Town 
Hall has been left with unusable, obsolete and broken furniture.  The property listed 
below may be declared as unusable or outdated as it can no longer be used effectively for 
Town purposes. It is recommended to sell, destroy or donate these items as surplus 
property.   

FINANCIAL IMPACT: The disposal of these office items will have no negative impact 
on the General Fund.  
 
SURPLUS ITEMS: 
 

 3 old desks and returns 

 5 TV style stands 

 4 broken office chairs 

 1 printer stand 

 2 small computer desks 

 2 bookcases 

 1 metal cabinet 

 1 cork board 

 1 partition   

 1 typewriter 

 1 metal locking drawer unit 

 

25



26



27



28



TOWN OF PARADISE 
RESOLUTION NO. 17-__ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE DECLARING 

CERTAIN TOWN  PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL THEREOF 
 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Paradise wishes to dispose of certain furniture/equipment from 
the Town Hall that is no longer functional or necessary to the Town’s operations through public 
auction, internet sale, salvage or other legal method. 
  
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
PARADISE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The following Town Hall furniture/equipment is declared to be surplus:  
 

 3 old desks and returns 

 5 TV style stands 

 4 broken office chairs 

 1 printer stand 

 2 small computer desks 

 2 bookcases 

 1 metal cabinet 

 1 cork board 

 1 partition   

 1 typewriter 

 1 metal locking drawer unit 
 

Section 2. Pursuant to Paradise Municipal Code Section 2.45.130, the Town Manager is 
hereby authorized to dispose of the property set forth in Section 1 through public auction, 
internet, sale, salvage, donation or other legal method.   
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Paradise on this 10th day 
of January, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 NOES: 

ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 
       By:________________________________ 
        Scott Lotter, Mayor 
ATTEST:  
      
______________________________ 
Dina Volenski, CMC, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 

29



1 
 

 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 

Date: January 10, 2017 
Agenda Item: 2(e) 

 
Originated by: 
 

Colette Curtis, Administrative Analyst II 

Reviewed by: 
 

Lauren Gill, Town Manager 

Subject: 
 

Submission of Substantial Amendment to the 2009/10 and 
2013/14 CDBG Annual Plans to HUD 

 
Council Action Requested: 
 

1. Approve submission of a Substantial Amendment to the 2009/10 and 2013/14 
CDBG Annual Plans to HUD. 

 
Background: 
 
The Town of Paradise has been a U.S. Department of Housing and Development 
(HUD) entitlement city since 1994.  HUD awards grants to entitlement community 
grantees to carry out a wide range of community development activities directed toward 
revitalizing neighborhoods, economic development, and providing improved community 
facilities and services.  

In the 2009/10 CDBG Annual Plan, the Town budgeted $80,000 towards a Commercial 
Façade Program, and in 2013/14 $40,000 was budgeted for Business Assistance.  
While the Town does offer a Small Business Assistance Program, there have been few 
applicants and no applications have met the criteria for the program at this point.  At the 
same time, the Town’s Housing Assistance Programs (First Time Home Buyer 
Assistance and Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance) have seen a large increase 
in applications and are unable to keep up with demand with the funding currently 
available.   
 
Discussion: 
 
In light of the current funding situation in the Business and Housing Department, staff 
has proposed making a Substantial Amendment to the 2009/10 and 2013/14 Annual 
Plans.  An amendment to the Annual Plan is considered “substantial” when the 
amendment is more than 25% of the current year’s funding allocation.  The proposed 
amendment would re-allocate the $80,000 in funding budgeted for Commercial Façade 
from the 2009/10 Program Year and the $40,000 allocated to Business Assistance from 
the 2013/14 Program Year to Housing Assistance.  Since the proposed Substantial 
Amendment would be for $120,000 which is more than 25% of the current year’s 
allocation of $172,295,  this amendment is considered a “substantial amendment” and 
must follow the 2010 Council adopted Citizen Participation Plan guidelines for approval 
before being submitted to HUD. 

30



2 
 

Fiscal Impact Analysis: 
 
The impact of this agenda item will be to reallocate $120,000 in previously granted 
funds from Business Assistance and Commercial Façade to Housing Assistance.  Not 
only will this aid the Housing Assistance Programs in meeting their demand, it will also 
spend down older funds which must be spent as soon as possible per HUD guidelines. 
 
 

31



Page 1 of 2 

 

  
 

TOWN OF PARADISE 
 

SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT TO THE 2009-10 and 2013 -14 ANNUAL PLANS 
 

Jurisdiction: 
 
 

TOWN OF PARADISE 
 

www.townofparadise.com 

CDBG Contact Person and Address: 
 

Colette Curtis 
5555 Skyway, 

Paradise, CA 95969 
Phone:  530-872-6291 ext. 112 

Fax:      530-877-5059 
Email:   ccurtis@townofparadise.com 

 
According to federal regulations and the Town of Paradise Citizen Participation Plan, any changes to 
an adopted CDBG budget that amounts to more than 25% of the annual allocation, and/or a 
cancellation or addition of a new project/activity, requires:  (a) public notification for solicitation of 
comments, (b) two public hearings, and (c) Town Council approval.  The amendment is then 
submitted to HUD for acceptance. 
 
The following amendment to the 2009-10 and 2013-14 CDBG Annual Plans is proposed for Council 
Consideration. 
 
Reallocate funds from Commercial Façade and Business Assistance to Housing Assistance 
 
The 2009-2010 Commercial Facade budget of $80,000 will be moved into the existing Housing 
Assistance Activity.  The 2013-2014 Business Assistance Budget of $40,000 will also be moved into 
the existing Housing Assistance Activity. 
 

2009-2010 
 CDBG Annual Plan Amendment 

 

Program 
Year 

Original 
Commercial Façade 

Funds 

Transferred to 
Housing Assistance 

 

 
Funds Remaining 

in Commercial 
Facade 

2009-10 $80,000 $80,000 $0 

 

32



Page 2 of 2 

 

2013-2014  

CDBG Annual Plan Amendment 

 

Program 
Year 

Original 
Business Assistance 

Funds 

Transferred to 
Housing Assistance 

 

 
Funds Remaining 

in Business 
Assistance 

2003-14 $40,000 $40,000 $0 

 
 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Based on the Town of Paradise Public Participation Plan, the Substantial Amendment is required to 
go through two public hearings before it is adopted by Council and submitted to HUD.  The Town 
published one Public Notice of the Substantial Amendment that was published in the Paradise Post 
on October 22, 2016.  The public notice listed the two different public hearing dates in which the 
public would have the opportunity to submit comments before the public hearing, or attend and 
speak on the item at the meeting.  The first public hearing was held on November 10th, 2016, the 
second public hearing was held on December 13th, 2016.  After the second and final public hearing, 
the Substantial amendment will be posted for public review for 30 days, ending on January 13th, 
2017.  The Draft Substantial Amendment will be posted on the Town’s website at 
www.townofparadise.com and copies will be available for public review at Town Hall, the Paradise 
Branch of the Butte County Library, the Senior Center, the Chamber of Commerce, and the Family 
Resource Center.   

33



1 

 

    TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 

Date: January 10, 2017 
 

Agenda No. 2(f) 
ORIGINATED BY: Gabriela Tazzari-Dineen, Police Chief 
 
REVIEWED BY: Lauren Gill, Town Manager  
                                                 
SUBJECT:                 Donations to the Paradise Animal Shelter  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  Accept two cash donations to the Town of Paradise Animal 
Shelter in the amount of $4,200.00 and apply it to Animal Control Donations 
7811.30.4540.3650.100. 
 
Background:  On December 19, 2016, Animal Control was contacted by the fiduciary of the 
estate of Patricia Miller regarding a donation in the amount of $4,100 for the Paradise Animal 
Shelter.  Ms. Miller wanted the funds used to support shelter services. 
 
On December 20, 2016 the finance department received through the mail a $100.00 donation 
from Gerald Kowalkowski also for the animal shelter.    
 
Discussion:   The Town Council’s resolution relating to donations provides for the formal 
presentation and acceptance of donations made to the Town of Paradise at a public meeting.  
The process provides a tax record for the citizen or organization as well as clear direction to the 
finance director to deposit such donations to specific accounts as requested by donor(s). 
 
As such, the Council is requested to accept the $4,200 in donations to the Paradise Animal 
Shelter and to direct the donations be deposited in the appropriate Animal Control Services 
account.   
 
Fiscal Impact Analysis: The donations will be used to help sustain animal shelter services.     

34



1 

 

    TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 

Date: January 10, 2017 
 

Agenda No. 2(g) 
ORIGINATED BY: David Hawks, Fire Chief 
 
REVIEWED BY: Lauren Gill, Town Manager  
                                                 
SUBJECT:                 Donation to the Paradise Fire Department  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:   
 

1. Accept the cash donation from Cindy Haskett, Blue Team Realty, Inc. to the Town of 
Paradise Fire Department in the amount of $5,000.00 and apply it to Fire Department 
Donations 7810.35.000.3650.100. 

2. Approve $5,000.00 budget appropriation from Fire Department Donations Fund Account 
7810.35.4630.5304 for the purchase of radio and intercom equipment. 

 
Background:  On December 20, 2016, the Fire Department was approached by Cindy Haskett 
regarding a donation in the amount of $5,000 for the Paradise Fire Department.  The Paradise 
Fire Department would like to apply the donation toward the purchase of mobile radios and 
interior headset/intercom system and for Pierce E81.  This donation will allow the engine to 
arrive from the manufacturer with the headset/intercom system and radios installed; saving the 
Department the time and expense to purchase and install the radios locally.  
 
Discussion:   The Town Council’s resolution provides for the formal presentation and 
acceptance of donations made to the Town of Paradise at a public meeting.  The process 
provides a tax record for the citizen or organization as well as clear direction to the finance 
director to deposit such donations to specific accounts as requested by donor(s). 
 
As such, the Council is requested to accept the $5,000 donation to the Paradise Fire 
Department and to direct the deposit be made to the appropriate fire department services 
account.   
 
Fiscal Impact Analysis: The donation will increase the funding of fire department services in 
the amount of $5,000.00 and cover the cost of a radio and intercom system for the Pierce E81.     

35



36



1 
 

 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 

Date: January 10, 2017 
Agenda Item: 5a 

 
Originated by: 
 

Colette Curtis, Administrative Analyst II 

Reviewed by: 
 

Lauren Gill, Town Manager 

Subject: 
 

Public Hearing for the Community Development Block Grant 
Program (CDBG) 2017-2018 Action Plan 

 
Council Action Requested: 
 

1. Conduct a public hearing to solicit comments and/or suggestions regarding the 
2017-2018 Annual Plan funding priorities. 

 
2. Approve the formation of a public services sub-committee to consider input and 

requests for public services funding ; and 
 

3. Appoint two Council members to the public services sub-committee. 

Background: 
The Town of Paradise has been a U.S. Department of Housing and Development 
(HUD) entitlement city since 1994.  HUD awards grants to entitlement community 
grantees to carry out a wide range of community development activities directed toward 
revitalizing neighborhoods, economic development, and providing improved community 
facilities and services.  

Entitlement communities develop their own programs and funding priorities. However, 
grantees must give maximum feasible priority to activities which benefit low and 
moderate income persons. A grantee may also carry out activities which aid in the 
prevention or elimination of slums or blight.  Additionally, grantees may fund activities 
when the grantee certifies that the activities meet other community development needs 
having a particular urgency because existing conditions pose a serious and immediate 
threat to the health or welfare of the community where other financial resources are not 
available to meet such needs. CDBG funds may not be used for activities which do not 
meet these broad national objectives.  

HUD determines the amount of each entitlement grant by a statutory dual formula which 
uses several objective measures of community needs, including the extent of poverty, 
population, housing overcrowding, age of housing and population growth lag in 
relationship to other metropolitan areas. 

 

 

37



2 
 

Annual Plan Overview: 
 
The Town has not received its funding allocation for the program year, but is estimating 
that HUD will allocate approximately $172,000, to the Town of Paradise for programs 
and projects that directly benefit the town’s low and moderate-income residents.  
Funding priorities for this program year include: 
 

 Assistance to community-based organizations 

 Loans to low income business owners to assist with septic and/or building 
improvements 

 Mortgage subsidies for first time homebuyers 

 Residential housing rehabilitation 
 

Annual Action Plan and Public Meetings: 

Over the next several weeks, staff will prepare a Draft Annual Action Plan.  The Plan will 
be available for public viewing and comment prior to its adoption by Council and prior to 
submission to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  The dates of 
the comment period and public hearings are as follows: 
 

 Public Hearing No. 2:  Tuesday, February 14, 2017 at 6:00 p.m., or as soon 
thereafter as possible, in the Town Hall Council Chambers at 5555 Skyway, 
Paradise, California.  This public hearing is to solicit suggestions and/or 
comments from the public regarding the 2016-2017 CDBG funding priorities and 
outlines general information about the CDBG program.  The public is encouraged 
to submit written comments on any aspect of the CDBG funding to Colette Curtis, 
5555 Skyway, and Paradise, CA  95969. 

 

 The Draft Annual Plan will be available to the public on February 14, 2017. The 
plan will be available on the Town’s website (www.townofparadise.com); at the 
Butte County Public Library on Clark Road in Paradise, at the Paradise Senior 
Center; at the Family Resource Center and at the Paradise Chamber of 
Commerce. The public comment period is from February 14th – March 14th 2017.  
Written comments should be addressed to Colette Curtis, 5555 Skyway, 
Paradise, CA  95969. 

 

 Town Council on the final Annual Plan:   Tuesday, April 11, 2017, at 6:00 
p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible, in the Town Hall Council Chambers at 
5555 Skyway, Paradise, California.  The Council will consider adopting the final 
2016-2017 Annual Plan and receive additional public comment at this time. 

 
Public Services Funding Process: 

As part of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Annual Plan process, the 
Town Council may elect, but is not required, to allocate up to 15% of its Program Year 
funding for public services agencies. The agencies must be legal, non-profit 
organizations that provide services to low- and moderate-income residents. 

Last year, the Town Council directed staff to establish a sub-committee consisting of 

38



3 
 

two council representatives and two staff members to hold preliminary interviews with 
interested subrecipients.  The purpose of the subcommittee was to meet with the 
subrecipients and make a formal recommendation to the Council for final approval.  

With the reduction CDBG funding, the subcommittee will be asked to consider whether 
to recommend a change in funding levels to the agencies for this program year.   Local 
public agencies that are considering applying for these funds should be aware that their 
funding may be reduced and/or eliminated this program year.   If the Council wishes to 
pursue public service agency input at this time, the following schedule will be required in 
order to meet the HUD Annual Plan submission deadline.  

Date Action 

Jan. 10 Town Council Meeting – 1
st
 Public Hearing. 

Jan. 10 Subrecipient Funding Applications available. 

Feb. 2 Subrecipient applications due to the Town. 

TBD – Mar Meetings with Subrecipients and interviews scheduled. 

Feb. 14 Town Council Meeting – 2
nd

 Public Hearing & review of DRAFT of Annual Plan. 

Feb. 14 30-day public comment period begins (Annual Plan draft  posted on Town’s 

website, and available at Town Hall, Senior Center, Paradise Library, Chamber 

and Family Resource Center. 

Mar. 14 30-day public comment period complete. 

Apr. 11 Town Council Meeting – Town Council considers approval of Action Plan. 

May 15 Deadline to submit 2017-2018 Annual Plan with Subrecipient funding requests. 
 

Discussion: 
Although the Town has some discretion on how the funds are used, there are many 
restrictions, conditions, and objectives that must be met.  Community Development 
Block Grant funds can be used for activities that further community and economic 
development; provide improved community facilities and services; and provide 
affordable housing opportunities to low and disadvantaged residents.  Each activity 
except planning and administrative activities, must meet one of the CDBG program’s 
three broad National Objectives: 

1. Benefit low and moderate income persons, 
2. Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight, or 
3. Meet community development needs having a particular urgency. 

The types of activities that meet the national objective will encompass the following 
basic qualifiers: 

Area benefit activities:  An activity can be area-wide meaning that the benefits are 
available to all the residents of a particular area where at least 51 percent of the 
residents are low and moderate income persons.  The service area must be primarily 
residential, and the activity must meet the identified needs of low-and-moderate income 
persons.   

Limited clientele activities:  An activity can be “limited clientele,” which means that the 
activity benefits a certain, limited clientele that is at least 51 percent low income.  An 

39



4 
 

example of this would be our housing programs.  We have to document and verify 
income to ensure that each client is eligible. 

Housing activities:  An activity carried out for the purpose of providing or improving 
permanent residential structures, which upon completion, will be principally occupied by 
low and moderate income households. 

Job creation or retention activities:  An activity designed to create or retain permanent 
jobs where at least 51% of that, computed on a full-time equivalent (FTE) basis, 
involves the employment of low and moderate income persons.  Potentially eligible 
activities include:  construction of a business incubator designed to offer space and 
assistance to new firms to help them become viable small businesses; loans to pay for 
expansion.   

Slum Blight Removal.  Activities under this category must meet ALL of the following 
criteria:  (1) The area delineated by the grantee must meet a definition of a slum, 
blighted, deteriorated or deteriorating area under state or local law; (2) there must be a 
substantial number of deteriorated buildings through the area; and (3) the activity must 
address one or more conditions that contributed to the deteriorate ion of the area.  
Boundaries, designations, inspections and detailed rehabilitation records must be kept. 

In addition to the above qualifiers, there is a list of basic eligible activities and ineligible 
activities that can be carried out using CDBG funds.  (Government Code Section 
570.201.)  

Basic Eligible Activities include: Acquisition/disposition of real property; public facilities 
acquisition, construction and rehabilitation; public services funding; payment of costs in 
support of activities eligible for funding under the HOME program; housing assistance 
for low/mod income families; and micro-enterprise assistance. 

Fiscal Impact Analysis: 
 
The impact of this agenda item and subsequent actions related to the CDBG Program is 
positive.  It will result in the award of approximately $172,000 in federal funds as we 
estimate the Town may receive approximately the same amount of funding as last year. 
 

40



 

 

 

1 

 

 
TOWN OF PARADISE 

Council Agenda Summary 
Date: January 10, 2017 

Agenda No. 6(a) 
 

ORIGINATED BY:  Marc Mattox, Public Works Director / Town Engineer 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Lauren Gill, Town Manager 
                                                 
SUBJECT: Paradise Police Building Primary & Backup Power Supply 

Emergency 
 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  
  

1. No action requested, update only. 
 
Background:  
 
On June 29 at Paradise Police Department, located at 5595 Black Olive Drive, an officer 
reported a burning smell coupled with several electrical surges in the building. Upon 
investigation, it was discovered that the transfer switch for the building had melted and been 
destroyed. This transfer switch is a dedicated piece of equipment which will automatically switch 
standard power from PG&E to emergency backup power from the standby generator during 
power outages. This switch is vital to the safety of the general public as the Paradise Police 
Department building must have constant power for the 911-dispatch center to perform their 
services. Furthermore, the building houses critical IT infrastructure valued over $750,000. 
 
During the initial work performed by Town staff to remove the immediate fire danger, power was 
manually transferred to the backup generator. Shortly after this was done, another failure 
occurred and power was completely lost to the building. Following a 10-minute outage, non-
critical cooling systems were turned off and power was restored using the backup generator.  
 
With the internal building temperatures steadily rising, staff was directed to hard-wire the power 
supply directly to the building, turning off the generator and bypassing the melted transfer 
switch. This condition was extremely dangerous as the building had no immediate backup 
power if an outage were to occur. Staff was prepared to re-wire the building back to the 
generator to serve only dispatch and IT, however, with response times this could take 1-2 hours 
– an unacceptable permanent condition. Lastly, should an outage have occurred and power not 
restored by generator within two hours, the building’s IT infrastructure was vulnerable to a 
catastrophic loss. 
 
On July 12, 2016, Paradise Town Council formally declared an emergency to repair or replace 
the building’s primary and backup power supply infrastructure. This declaration was critical to 
shorten the amount of time whereas our emergency response building was in such a vulnerable 
state, compromising public safety. Using this action, staff was able to work directly with Chico 
Electric after considering several other contractors informally. Town Council approved a budget 
up to $100,000 for the repairs. 
 
Between July 13 and July 25, further investigation was performed at the Paradise Police 
Department building and the existing generator, serving PD, Fire and Fleet. Findings 
demonstrated that the current generator was indeed, undersized. After much consultation and 
alternatives analysis, it was determined the best solution was to replace the failed transfer 

 

41



 

 

 

2 

 

switch and install a new, dedicated backup generator to serve the Police Department only. The 
existing generator would continue to serve both Fire Station 81 and the Mechanic’s shop.  
 
On July 28, 2016, a formal contract was agreed to by the Town of Paradise and Chico Electric.  
The total contract amount is $84,690. Services included in this cost are as follows: 
 
 Transfer Switch Replacement 
 

Replacement of existing generator transfer switch in Police Department with new 400 
amp 208Y/120 volt transfer switch and connect to existing generator. Bookcase in closet 
will require removal for clearance for new switch. New 400 amp feeders will be installed 
for line and load side interconnection to main electrical panel located in adjacent closet. 
Work to be performed during normal business hours with after-hours cut-over of power 
to new switch. 

  
Generator Installation 
 
Installation of new 100 Kw Peterson Caterpillar diesel fueled generator set with new 
concrete pad and tie in to main electrical panel. New generator to be installed just 
outside of main panel room on side of building. Proposal includes complete installation, 
engineering, tie-in, excavation, concrete pad, startup of unit, training, Butte County Air 
Quality inspection and rewire of existing Kohler generator to separate from the Police 
Department and power only the Fire Station and Maintenance building. New generator 
has room for over 40% growth and will serve the building well for decades to come. 

 
Analysis:  
 
The transfer switch was successfully replaced on July 29, whereby had an immediate power 
outage occurred, the existing generator could have been used.  
 
The generator was ordered in early August to meet the demands of the building. The lead time 
for installation was 10-12 weeks, meaning installation and tie-in in early November.  
 
The stock fuel tank for the new generator was 209 gallons. With current electrical demands, the 
unit will operate for 43 hours uninterrupted. This amount of runtime was determined to be 
inadequate in cases of a major power event. On August 24, staff directed Chico Electric to 
upgrade the fuel capacity to the maximum size of 394 gallons. With current electrical demands 
the unit will operate for 81 hours uninterrupted. This change order was ratified by staff and 
Chico Electric for a cost of $3,225.00. Peterson Caterpillar provided Chico Electric with updated 
design drawings, reflecting the upgraded fuel tank for construction. 
 
On November 1, 2016, the new generator arrived, on-time. However, upon inspection it was 
determined that the generator was sitting on the stock fuel tank. As each unit is manufactured 
individually, this was a major misstep by the manufacturer with implications in the form of 
completion delays. Chico Electric provided documentation showing the revised fuel tank was 
acknowledged by Peterson Caterpillar.  On November 7, 2016, Chico Electric offered to absorb 
the costs of the change order ($3,225.00) and fueling the tank to maximum capacity ($1,200) 
upon installation of a new unit in 10-12 weeks.  
 
During the week of January 3, 2017, the correct fueling tank was re-fitted to the generator. The 
installation date is scheduled for January 5 with all systems expected to be operational by 
January 10. 
 

42



 

 

 

3 

 

Final inspections will take place on January 11 and the project is expected to be considered for 
final acceptance by the Town Council on February 14. 
 
 
Financial Impact:  
 
On July 26, 2016 at the Measure C Oversight Committee meeting, the Committee voted 
unanimously to fund these emergency repairs using Measure C. The original contract cost was 
$84,690. Following award, staff approved a change order to upgrade the fuel tank, which has 
since been voided due to complications of the delivery, and these costs will be absorbed by 
Chico Electric. The final project cost is $84,690. 
 

43


	Top
	1a. 01/10/17 1e PD Presentation &quot;of the Year Awards&quot;
	2a. 01/10/17 2a Approve Minutes December 13, 2016
	2a Town Council 12_13_2016 06_00PM Minutes.docx

	2b. 01/10/17 2b Cash Disbursements
	2b Cash Disbursements 01.10.17.pdf

	2c. 01/10/17 2c Adopt Resolution 17-  Authorizing Submittal of HOME grant
	2c Agenda Summary.doc
	2c Resolution 17-.doc

	2d. 01/10/17 2d Surplus Items
	2d Surplus Equip 2017.doc
	2d Surplus pictures.pptx
	2d Surplus Resolution.doc

	2e. 01/10/17 2e Approve Submission of Substantial Amendment to HUD
	2e Agenda Summary Substantial Amendment to HUD.doc
	2e 2016 Substantial Amendment - program year 09-10 and 13-14.doc

	2f. 01/10/17 2f Accept Donations to Animal Shelter
	2f Agenda Summary - AC Donation 011017.doc

	2g. 01/10/17 2g Accept Fire Department Donation
	2g Agenda Summary - Fire Donation 011017.doc
	2g fire donation.pdf

	5a. 01/10/17 5a Public Hearing for the 2017-18 CDBG Annual Plan
	5a Agenda Summary-1st Hearing Annual Plan Public Information Hearing.doc

	6a. 01/10/17 6a PD Electrical Emergency Project Update
	6a Agenda Summary - PPD Electrical Emergency Update.doc

	Bottom

